Rasteniene, Jolanta: Canadian Institute for Environmental Law and Policy CANADIAN INSTITUTE FOR ENVIRONMENTAL LAW AND POLICY Teachers' Guide To The National Pollutant Release Inventory L'INSTITUT CANADIEN DU DROIT ET DE LA POLITIQUE DE L'ENVIRONNEMENT **TEACHERS' GUIDE TO THE NATIONAL POLLUTANT RELEASE INVENTORY** P 0 u t 0 m 2002 2004 2000 1998

CIELAP Shelf:

RN 27361

Canadian Institute for Environmental Law and Policy

January 2005

Prepared for PollutionWatch (http://www.PollutionWatch.org) Thanks to the EJLB Foundation for supporting the production of this report. The information, view or approach proposed for student activities included in this guide are attributed fully to CIELAP and not to its funders.

Special thanks to Jolanta Rasteniene for compiling this guide.

Thanks to teachers Grant Wardlaw and Julie Pankard, the Canadian Institute for Environmental Law and Policy, the Canadian Environmental Law Association, Environmental Defence and other organizations and individuals for their interest and valuable comments.

For more information concerning this publication contact:

Anne Mitchell, Executive Director Canadian Institute for Environmental Law and Policy 130 Spadina Avenue, Suite 305 Toronto, ON M5V 2L4 info@cielap.org

ISBN# 1-896588-48-4

© Canadian Institute for Environmental Law and Policy

CIELAP is an independent, not-for-profit environmental law and policy research and education organization, founded in 1970 as the Canadian Environmental Law Research Foundation.

CANADIAN INSTITUTE FOR ENVIRONMENTAL LAW AND POLICY

> L'INSTITUT CANADIEN DU DROIT ET DE LA POLITIQUE DE L'ENVIRONNEMENT

130 Spadina Avenue Suite 305 Toronto, Ontario M5V 2L4 Tel: (416)923-3529 Fax: (416)923-5949 www.cielap.org

Table of Contents

I Introduction	4
II Pollutant Release and Transfer Registers (PRTRs) in different jurisdictions	4
III Canadian National Pollutant Release Inventory	5
IV Understanding NPRI	6
Legal basis of the NPRI	6
Who reports to NPRI?	6
What does a facility have to report to the NPRI?	7
What substances are reported?	8
V How to use NPRI?	9
VI Data interpretation	10
Year to year comparisons	10
Facility to facility comparisons	11
VII Other Sources of Pollution Data Information	12
VIII How to Use NPRI Data in the Classroom	13
Watershed and Airshed	13
Activity 1	14
Activity 2	17

I Introduction

Pollutant Release and Transfer Registers (PRTRs) are tools that allow governments to track and manage information on pollution, as well as provide pollution information to the public. The data reported to PRTRs can be collected from point sources, such as stacks of facilities, or non-point sources, such as agricultural operations. PRTRs typically include information about releases to air, water and land as well as waste transported to disposal sites. Pollutant registers inform citizens about pollution and enable them to participate in environmental decision-making. PRTRs also allow operators of industrial facilities to assess their performance, and enable decision-makers to make informed decisions. In addition, PRTRs provide valuable information to other sectors of society, including scientists, law and policy makers, and insurance companies.

The main requirements for successful pollutant registers are:

- Pollution releases and transfer data reporting by facilities is mandatory;
- Data is updated regularly (usually annually);
- Reporting covers releases to all environmental media, that is, air, water and land; and transfers for disposal or recycling; and,
- Public access to information on a facility and pollutant basis.

The purpose of this *Teachers' Guide to the National Pollutant Release Inventory* is to help junior high and high school teachers understand what information they can find in the inventory, how and where to access the data and how to use it in the classroom. This guide also contains classroom activity examples based on NPRI data found on PollutionWatch - an interactive web site where visitors can find out what chemicals are released in their local communities. These activities will help students to learn more about the chemicals released into local watersheds and airsheds.

II Pollutant Release and Transfer Registers (PRTRs) in different jurisdictions

In 1987, the United States (US) became the first jurisdiction to introduce a Pollutant Release and Transfer Register, followed by Canada, the Netherlands, the United Kingdom, Australia and other countries. Although many countries around the world operate pollution inventories, the policies tend to differ. For example, the list of substances that require reporting and their associated reporting thresholds can vary from country to country.

The European Commission and the European Environmental Agency are also harmonizing their industrial emissions to air and water reporting, and developing a comprehensive European Pollutant Release and Transfer Register (PRTR). This register will provide annual information on more then 90 substances released to air, water and land, and will cover 65 industrial activities. It will also include information from non-point sources such as road traffic, aviation, shipping and agriculture. The new register should go online in 2009.¹

The Commission for Environmental Cooperation (CEC), an organization created as an associated environmental agency designed to work with the North American Free Trade

¹ The European Pollutant Emissions Register web site and background information can be found at http://www.eper.cec.eu.int

Agreement (NAFTA), compiles data and publishes *Taking Stock*, an annual report on the North American Pollutant Inventories. The report on 2001 data includes 21,254 industrial facilities as well as electrical utilities, hazardous waste management facilities, wholesale chemical distributors and coal mining, and all categories of releases and transfers. Over 11% of all releases of chemicals in North America are known or suspected carcinogens.²

Canadian environmental organisations analyse the National Pollutant Release Inventory (NPRI) data to inform citizens about pollution in their communities. The Canadian Environmental Law Association and Environmental Defence provide a unique Internet service on the PollutionWatch web site (http://www.PollutionWatch.org). By simply entering their postal code, visitors to the site can find out who is polluting in their community, the type and quantity of pollution being released and the potential health risks.

III Canadian National Pollutant Release Inventory

Canada's National Pollutant Release Inventory is an annual, publicly accessible database of pollutants released on site to the environment or transferred off site for disposal or recycling by private and publicly owned facilities.

The NPRI was developed in 1992 through a multi-stakeholder process that used the US experience as a model. Nine representatives from different industrial sectors – six environmental and labour groups, and three federal and provincial governments – formed the Advisory Committee to make recommendations for the first Canadian NPRI. Public involvement in the NPRI development arose from a community's right to know exactly what toxic chemicals are being produced, used or manufactured in its neighbourhoods.

NPRI is a dynamic program. Since the first reporting of pollution releases and transfers in 1994, there have been many changes in the NPRI. The most important changes were:

- Additional substances have been added or deleted;
- The reporting thresholds for specific substances have been amended including the addition of criteria air contaminants for 2002; and,
- Requirements for reporting for different industries have changed.

PollutionWatch Web site http://www.PollutionWatch.org

You can also access the NPRI data on the PollutionWatch web site, a joint web site project of the Canadian Environmental Law Association and Environmental Defence. PollutionWatch allows you to review and analyze the NPRI data by using several tools.

PollutionWatch http://www.PollutionWatch.org

² For more information and to download an electronic version of the annual *Taking Stock* report visit North American Commission for Environmental Cooperation web site http://www.cec.org

On PollutionWatch you can:

- Create a timeline of pollution trends (the timeline is visually represented on a colourcoded graph);
- Determine the total amount of pollutants released to air, water or land;
- Search by postal code by entering the first three digits of your postal code to find facilities reporting releases and transfers of pollutants in your community;
- Access graphs, tables and facility profiles. The facility profile page provides information on the list of pollutants released and transferred. This page also provides the name and address of the facility;
- Send a letter to the facility using the link "Email/Fax Facility" on the facility profile page or send a letter to the Federal Minister of Environment by linking to the "Take Action" button located on the main menu bar;
- Determine the location of the facility using the "Location Map" function; and,
- Find out how many people work in the facility and where the owner of the company is located using the "Facility Information" link found on the facility profile page.

IV Understanding NPRI

Legal basis of the NPRI

The National Pollutant Release Inventory is a key source of information about pollution in Canada. The *Canadian Environmental Protection Act* (CEPA), which was renewed in 1999 and went into force in April 2000, requires the federal government to have a "national inventory of releases of pollutants" and requires Environment Canada "to publish the national inventory of releases of pollutants". If owners and operators of facilities meet the reporting criteria determined by the Minister of the Environment, they are required by CEPA to report to the NPRI. (More information on environmental regulation is available on the PollutionWatch web site under Environmental Laws http://www.PollutionWatch.org).

The owner or operator of a facility reports to NPRI if the facility meets all three of the following criteria:

Employee Criteria: The facility has 10 or more full-time employees (or an equivalent of 20,000 worker-hours per year).

Facility Criteria: The facility manufactured, processed or otherwise used 10 tonnes or more of an NPRI substance during the calendar year.

Concentration Threshold: The NPRI substance was manufactured, processed or otherwise used at a concentration of 1% or more by weight.

Who reports to NPRI?

The NPRI includes more than 100 industrial and commercial sectors. In 2002, the most current publicly available data, 4,596 facilities reported to this registry. On occasion, even if a facility uses chemicals, it might be too small to report to the NPRI and information about this facility may not be available on the NPRI.

Some sectors, which otherwise meet the criteria listed above, are exempt from reporting to the NPRI. These include universities, schools, research organizations, retail, mining (extraction activities are exempt) or dental practices.

Some facilities are required to report despite the reporting criteria. For example the employee threshold does not apply to waste incinerators. wood preservation operations or wastewater collection systems discharging more then 10.000m³ of wastewater per day. That means that even if employees in these facilities work in total less then 20,000 hours per year, these facilities are still required to report their releases to NPRI, usually because they release small amounts of highly toxic pollutants harmful to human health, such as dioxins and furans. More information concerning reporting requirements is available at http://www.PollutionWatch.org in Understanding the Data.

What does a facility have to report to the NPRI?

Every year each facility that meets the reporting requirements for the substance listed under NPRI must report its releases According to the Ontario Clean Air Alliance report on mercury emissions, five coal-fired power plants operated by Ontario Power Generation emitted 527 kilograms of mercury to the air in 2002.

In recent years. Environment Canada has recognized the need for NPRI to clarify the picture it provides of persistent bioaccumulative and/or toxic substances, such as mercury. In 2000, Environment Canada introduced special NPRI reporting requirements for mercury. The reporting threshold for mercury and its compounds was lowered from 10,000 kilograms to five kilograms 1% concentration threshold and the was eliminated. Certain types of facilities, such as incinerators. cement kilns and wastewater treatment plants, which are sources of mercury, were required to report regardless of their number of employees.

The results of lowering the mercury-reporting threshold were dramatic: The number of facilities reporting mercury and its compounds jumped from 18 facilities in 1999 to almost 300 facilities in 2000. The amounts of mercury and its compounds reported increased 350%.

The report called Mercury Rising: Mercury Emissions from Ontario Power Generation's Coal Fired Plants can be found at: http://www.cleanair.web.net/resource/mercurv.pdf

and transfers for that substance. If a facility meets the criteria (employee, facility and concentration) but actually has not released or transferred any NPRI substances, it reports 0.0³ kg released (see page 6 of this guide).

The PollutionWatch web site presents NPRI data using the terms releases and transfers:

On-site Releases: A release at the site of the facility, within the boundaries of the facility, using one of the following methods:

- Air release: A release of a chemical into the air at the facility site;
- Water release: A release of a chemical into the water, usually a stream, lake or ocean. Included in this category are direct discharges, spills and leaks;
- Land release: A release of a chemical onto the land at the facility site. Included in this category are landfills, land treatment (a chemical is applied onto or incorporated into soil), spills, leaks and other land releases; and,
- **Underground Injection**: A release of a chemical injected into the ground at the facility site.

³ A value "0.0" means that the level of a specific pollutant does not meet the reporting requirements.

Off-Site Releases: A release of chemicals, generally transferred from the facility to another location for disposal using one of the following methods:

- **Containment**: Either landfill or other storage at an off-site location;
- Land treatment: Either land application or land farming at an off-site location; and,
- Underground injection: Chemicals injected underground at an off-site location.

Transfers for Further Management: Chemicals transferred off the facility site to another facility for the following:

Treatments:

- Physical Treatment: Includes methods such as drying, evaporation and other;
- **Chemical Treatment**: Includes methods such as precipitation, stabilization or neutralization; and,
- Biological Treatment: Includes methods such as bio-oxidation or composting.

Incineration: Chemicals transferred to an incinerator. This differs from energy recovery as the substance or the material containing the substance does not have sufficient fuel value to contribute toward energy recovery.

Sewage: Chemicals discharged to a sewer system or a waste water treatment facility.

Energy recovery: The substance or the material containing the substance has sufficient energy content to be used as a fuel for energy recovery.

Transfers for recycling: Chemicals sent off-site for recycling.

	Steps required by a facility reporting to NPRI 2002:
	Facility produces and releases chemicals
1 111	Facility determines by itself if it is required to report to NPRI
1	Facility estimates releases and transfers by itself and collects all the information required by NPRI
1	Facility writes NPRI report
111	Facility sends the NPRI report on releases and transfers to Environment Canada by June of the each reporting year
1 22	Environment Canada collects and analyzes the information
	Environment Canada releases the data to the public (http://www.ec.gc.ca/pdb/npri/)

What substances are reported?

NPRI is a dynamic registry and NPRI reporting requirements may change from year to year. The 2002 NPRI data is the most current publicly available data. For the 2002 reporting year,

NPRI listed 274 substances for mandatory reporting. The list of substances reported can be obtained from the Environment Canada NPRI web site http://www.ec.gc.ca/pdb/npri/npri_si_e.cfm In 2002, 4,596 facilities reported to NPRI. This represents an increase of 1,979 facilities from the previous reporting year and is due to significant changes in reporting requirements.

The federal government, in consultation with stakeholders including non-governmental organizations and industries, expanded the list of substances that must be reported to the NPRI for the year 2002 to include chemicals known as Criteria Air Contaminants (CACs). These include carbon monoxide, oxides of nitrogen, particulate matter less than or equal to 2.5 microns (PM 2.5), particulate matter less than or equal to 10 microns (PM 10), particulate matter less than 100 microns (total particulate matter), sulphur dioxide, and volatile organic compounds (VOCs). These pollutants are key smog- and acid rain-causing chemicals. (For more information about criteria air contaminants and their environmental and health effects, visit http://www.PollutionWatch.org).

V How to use NPRI?

Environment Canada Communication Tools: web, disks, reports

NPRI data can be accessed using a wide range of tools:

- National Pollutant Release Inventory web site http://www.ec.gc.ca./pdb/npri/
- Download or order NPRI Annual reports and fact sheets;
- Download the NPRI database and analyze it by yourself (warning: the Excel database takes 19,641KB of memory);
- Order a CD with the database from NPRI office; and,
- Search the database on the NPRI web site. You can search by facility or by location.

Other search functions and tools available on PollutionWatch:

Pollution Rankings

This search allows web site users to rank releases and transfers from facilities and companies across Canada. Visitors can choose a national view, or look for pollution in any province. They can also rank by health effects, such as carcinogens, respiratory toxins, endocrine disrupters, toxic substances, reproductive toxins and more.

Who is Polluting?

With this search function, users can find out who is polluting (facility, company, sector). They can also choose to search by different types of air pollution – by Criteria Air Contaminants (CACs), which cause smog and acid rain, by toxic pollutants or by a combined total of both CACs and toxic pollutants. More generally, visitors or users can search by on-site pollution releases (air releases, water releases or land releases) as well as off-site releases (underground or off site land releases). (Definitions of the on-site and off-site releases are provided on the page 7 of this guide).

If you are interested in releases or transfers of a particular pollutant, go to the Select a Pollutant line for a full list of NPRI pollutants.

NPRI poster maps

The Canadian Institute for Environmental Law and Policy released poster maps showing pollution hotspots throughout Canada in 2000, 1998 and 1996 based on NPRI data from the corresponding year. NPRI maps are available in English and French.



The latest poster map, using data from the 2000 NPRI, presents the top on-site releases and off-site transfers of pollutants by facilities across Canada. The poster also shows a summary of releases, transfers and recycling of pollutants by province.

The poster is designed to familiarize students with the NPRI and to provide a useful teaching tool for Canadian and World Studies. CIELAP offers copies of the poster to teachers, researchers and environmental organizations. (To order the maps go to http://www.cielap.org).

VI Data interpretation

There are several ways governments, non-governmental environmental organizations, students and interested citizens use the NPRI data. Whether using the government NPRI web site or the PollutonWatch web site, carefully read the background information on how to interpret the NPRI data.

Year to year comparisons

One of the purposes of NPRI is to allow users to assess the pollution-release activities of a facility over time. The PollutionWatch web site will give you already calculated information on the amounts of substances released or transferred from year to year. You can find year-to-year release and transfer comparisons for individual facilities, provinces or territories or the whole country. (Generated Pollution Timeline, see Figure 1 below.)

When looking at changes to NPRI data over time, it is important to keep in mind that the amount of releases reported to the NPRI may change over time for a variety of reasons. It addition to changes to the actual amount of releases, these reasons may include changes to the methodologies used to calculate releases, changes to reporting requirements that result in reporting from new facilities and on new substances, and efforts to ensure that facilities are interpreting the NPRI requirements correctly. Therefore, an increase in releases reported to the NPRI does not necessarily correspond to an increase in actual releases to the environment. Figure 1: The graph shows a Generated Pollution Timeline of releases to air in British Columbia for the NPRI data from 1995 to 2002.



Facility-to-facility comparisons

If you would like to find out where the facility in your community ranks in comparison to similar facilities in the province or country, you can use facility-to-facility comparison. The PollutionWatch web site offers a Pollution Rankings tool that is easy to navigate. The facility-to-facility comparison could give you support for approaching your local facility and suggesting it take measures to cut releases to your environment. (See Figure 2 on next page for facility-to-facility comparison example.)

Figure 2: The example shows Query Results for Alcan Inc., a company producing metal. The facilities are ranked by air releases of CACs and toxic pollutants combined.

			seed to a second se	ふればる 二、 通道 出する、 のなれば、 しき	and a low a section	Correges Claimmer Claimmeric		
<u>Sawdi</u>		QUERY RES	JLTS	<u>finar traffette t</u> Eisin Ensiste Format				
bout Poliution Watch	(f) Search	th Parameters:				Seguritarian contract datal calabada any persettile et la c		
low to use PollucionWatch	Facili 1 Provi	ty: alcan ncu: Across Canada						
On is Pohning?	Palle	linn Type: Air Releas	es of Combined (W	About VOC)				
in it converge	Pleas	zuuz A nafe:						
ollution Rankings		un sectores.						
nitution Timelines	• •	The units of measurem	ent for data presented :	ielow się m kónyr	ama (Kŋ), ew	2023		
nvirgemental Leve	<u>*</u>)	grans its TEQ		(12 (31) 2172. 2728/312)	*14*535 WIALI)			
	- ·	Recycling data is not en	iloro is test constants.	14 Finalista (1983	Yo outsin rac	cient data, places		
		for the particular second second second						
lake Action	<u>ی</u> ک	Kao Mare	Company Manual Y	Na Barana M	tenots	Mar constituent on		
asson Plans for Teachers	(*) (*)	r at may	Company Rame ()	ite annount ite	Anking	3**3 %F#1f16.2:		
	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	Livera Itania	Section 1612	61.332.201	2			
leisourtet Prencaises		lisini Adrola	<u>Et 10 - 26</u>	51,400,125	14 <u>%</u>			
	4	<u>Birrer Vicer</u>	Ser 37 201	27.017.582	50	80		
fapa	STATISTICS AND STATISTICS	USINE LA ENRIESE	<u>ALALIA</u>	22.238.222	13	00		
бара				192 A 198 (1935)	24	90		
Kapa earch Pollution Watch	S.	Unite Standar Star	415 million (24	Constants Const Collector in Martin				
Kapi earch Polistion Watch		<u>antindetas</u> Tirteireannies	hindin Gratin	lander and the second	32	6C		
faps earch PolicilonWatch	ۍ ب	<u>Orine Surde-Rex</u> USINE Southering URINE de Remémoire	en an ini En an ini En an ini	11,495,300 <u>10,700, 1</u> 23	312 T.)			
faps earch PolicionWatzh	<u>ب</u> ب	<u>Unite Stande Bas</u> GENE Semistration Unite de Bandontair Grant Sandrad	HEREIDI Generidi Generidi Harriz	12.495.391 <u>15.795.5</u> 23 4.335.125	12 11 131	60 60 60		
tapa earch FoliotionWatch	<u>ب</u> به پ	<u>Unione Consolde Base</u> Unione Consonnations Unione Consonnations Unione Consonnations Electronic Works			30 173 1739 2711	60 60 60 62		
tapa earch FoliotionWatch	* 5 5 5 5 5 7 8 8 8 10	Come Genele Ben releat Somethicker United & Renderation Come Vanisation Renorm Vanis Anno Tant	Allan in Geogladi Geogladi Hean in Hean in Geogladi	11.401.181 <u>16.101</u> .423 4.1885.225 1.403.734 8.445	32 57 53 57 5 55 5 5	900 900 900 900 900 900		

VII Other Sources of Pollution Data Information

Greenhouse Gas Inventory

On December 17, 2002, Canada ratified the Kyoto Protocol to the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC). This Protocol binds Canada to a reduction of its greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions to 6% below 1990 levels. Under the Protocol, Canada's GHG Inventory will be the tool for measuring progress against this obligation. In 2004 the Government of Canada, in partnership with the provincial and territorial governments, launched the first phase of a mandatory greenhouse gas reporting system. By June 2005, facilities that have emissions greater than 100 kilotonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent in 2004 must report these emissions to the government.⁴ This would include major industrial facilities that produce electricity, heat or steam using fossil fuels certain power generation facilities, for example, as well as integrated steel mills, facilities involved in smelting and refining metals, petroleum refineries, and chemical

⁴ More information on Canada's GHG Inventory is available on the Environment Canada web site: http://www.ec.gc.ca/pdb/ghg/ghg_home_e.cfm

producers. The reporting system will help to track and publish GHG emissions and Canada's performance addressing climate change.

US Scorecard (http://www.scorecard.org)

The US based Scorecard web site contains a lot of comprehensive information on US Environmental Protection Agency's Toxics Release Inventory. This web site, which is designed and maintained by the US non-governmental organization Environmental Defense, also provides detailed chemical profiles and up to date health effects information.⁵

VIII How to Use NPRI Data in the Classroom

To find out about reported pollution in your community's water, air, or land it is necessary to first define the scope of your search. Below we suggest using a watershed or an airshed as a unit to narrow your search. (The description of airshed and watershed is provided in the following section of this guide.) When students perform the following activities, they must be made aware that NPRI data covers pollution only from point sources and does not include non-point source polluters such as agriculture or transportation vehicles.

The following activities are recommended for students in grades six to nine.

Watershed and Airshed

A *watershed* is an area of land in which all rain and snow runoff and small tributaries drain into a common body of water such as a creek or lake. A sub watershed is an area drained by an individual tributary to the main watercourse.

A watershed-based management approach takes into account everything that occurs within a watershed, including both naturally occurring activities and human activities. In this regard, soil, vegetation, animals and humans are all an integral part of a watershed. Watershed-based management considers local as well as regional issues and is rooted in an ecosystem approach to management that uses the watershed as a water quality and quantity planning unit. It results in a better understanding of water quality and quantity and aquatic ecosystem problems and makes it possible to identify sustainable solutions. Watershed-based management also makes it easier to define action priorities by considering the cumulative impacts on aquatic ecosystems.

Different provinces have different authorities for their watershed management. For example, the Saskatchewan Watershed Authority is responsible for the management of local water quality and quantity and has posted maps of Saskatchewan watersheds on the Internet. (see http://www.swa.ca and go to maps). Other provinces, such as Ontario, also divided their areas into watersheds. Conservation Authorities in Ontario are responsible for watershed management in this province. (More, nicely illustrated information on watershed and threats for water sources can be found in the *Source Water Protection Primer* available on the Pollution Probe web site http://www.pollutionprobe.org/Reports/swpprimer.pdf)

Over the last two decades, there has been increased public awareness about issues such as urban smog, acid rain and global warming. The quality of the air we breathe is dependent on the rate that pollutants are emitted into the atmosphere and the ability of the atmosphere to disperse

⁵ U.S. EPA Toxics Release Inventory: Community Right-to-Know Homepage http://www.epa.gov/tri/

these pollutants. The movement and dispersion of air pollutants is controlled by wind, temperature, turbulence and the changes in these elements caused by local topography (mountains and valleys). An *airshed* has no fixed boundaries because seasonal variations and disruptive events, such as major storms, will cause an airshed's size and shape to change throughout the year.

Airsheds and watersheds are very closely related. For example, scientists in United States estimated that in the Chesapeake Bay area, 75% of nitrogen was deposited from the airshed to the watershed. The best example of an airshed is a valley surrounded by mountains where air does not change very quickly. Very few communities have such a clear boundary for their airshed. For the classroom activities, it is possible to use an airshed that is the same size as a watershed to define air pollution in your area.

The use of the watershed or airshed boundaries in the activities below will help students to visualize toxic releases on the map and demonstrate that toxic pollutants can have impacts far away from the source of release.

Activity Examples: Identify local watershed and find out about pollution using NPRI data through the PollutionWatch web site

Each of the following activities can be used on its own or in any combination with other activities that supports classroom curriculum. Activities are recommended for high school students but can be adopted for younger grades.

Activity 1

Time required: 4-5 time units (45 minute periods)

How to find pollution in your watershed?

This activity is designed so that students will be able to visualize the density of facilities releasing pollutants to their surrounding environment.

This exercise will allow students to identify key pollutants that are being released into the local watershed. Also, students will learn to clearly define a watershed. During this activity, students will research their own community or region. Students will perform searches on the Internet using the PollutionWatch web site for relevant information that pertains to their area of research.

Goals of this Activity:

- 1. To identify key pollutants that are being released into the local watershed;
- 2. To visually segregate key areas of concern with high pollutant values;
- 3. To visually see various pollutant release locations on a map;
- 4. To show students the boundaries which extend outside of their daily commuting lives;
- 5. To learn to identify watersheds.
- 6. To improve understanding of some of the health effects from pollutants found in a watershed.

Definition: Watershed

• A region in which a river or body of water receives its supply of water;

- A separator of high land which divides two land masses which drain into different river systems;
- A segregation or basin within which there is a common drainage system. This basin may be part of much larger drainage system; and,
- A water supply which functions for various daily consumption activities such as for human drinking, cleaning, manufacturing, farming and other.

Preparation Work for Teachers:

- Review the components that make up a watershed;
- Research local industrial regions and their pollutants which are being released in the watershed area;
- If you find there is a limited amount of information or data for your local watershed, choose a bigger river basin that is located nearby. For example, Northern Regions may have completely different water issues than those in the South with highly populated and industrialized cities; and,
- It would be useful to obtain a map with postal codes. Canada Post postal code maps are available at http://www.postescanada.ca/cpc2/addrm/hh/current/indexp/tpALL-e.asp. From this site you can get detailed maps of all the postal codes for your area of interest.

Step 1

Have students browse the web to research various pollutants in their environment. Have them gather and share information in groups and form a hypothesis on what pollutants they believe are affecting their environment and how they think the pollutants got there. (20 min)

Step 2

Have the class put together its idea of what a watershed is. First, define what a watershed is. Provide maps as examples. (20 min)

Step 3

Either in groups or as a class, identify a watershed that you plan to study, preferably one close to the students' everyday life. (20 min)

Students may wish to work in groups and approach local authorities responsible for the watershed management to acquire additional information about their local watershed.

Step 4

Create a large topographical map of your local area, region, or province. Students may wish to be assigned a certain watershed to examine industries located in each watershed. (20 min)

Step 5

Students will research all of the components of the watershed, such as who and what drains into the area and where the inlets and outlets are. Students will then receive a piece of transparent acetate that they will cut to fit the area of their watershed on the map. (40 min)

Step 6

Students need to place the transparent acetate on the map with postal codes to see what postal codes fall within the area of their watershed. Ask students to make a list of postal codes covered by the acetate. Entering each postal code in the PollutionWatch "search by postal code" function will let students find the list of facilities releasing pollutants to water. (See below the example of query results.) (40 min)

Teachers' Guide to the National Pollutant Release Inventory

Step 7

Use stickers and push pins to mark the location of the facility if the releases to water are more than 0. (20 min)

Step 8

Bring the class together. Have them step back and study the map. Review the completed maps and identify possible areas of concern. Have the class identify the various watersheds, the clusters of pollutants, and have a discussion about why these clusters are where they are, and what could be done to reduce pollutant releases into the environment. (20 min)

Example (see Figure 3):

- Enter first two digits of Sarnia N7 that you found out from the Canada Post web site. You will
 get QUERY RESULTS with the list of 26 facilities.
- Click on the Total Amount of chemicals released by each facility. You will get a Facility Profile.
- On the facility profile page, click onto the total amount of releases for the facility or click on the Pollution Ranking located in right top corner on the screen. Scroll down to see Water Releases.
- Look for the releases to water for each facility.

Figure 3: This figure shows the query results for the postal code starting with N7. Users can click on the name of the facility or total amount to get more information.

🗿 List of Facilities - Microsoft Inte	na (to)							
1. For New Lynner I work line in the second line in the second line	2: 1.45 	la Hermitele surgions approximate autority Material activity of the	5). 19. (j. 19. (j. 19			and a second state of the	an marine and the second s	
1999	J sear	Altonna Sugar		<u>u</u>	20419230 (19972) 			-1-26
. An	N SALAY NA ANA Managana ang kanalan Managana ang kanalan		an a			and the second secon	Ser Tradition and the second	
Tres () state in Auto () tree	85 Q1/22	elanceran elan	na na sa	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	ana ing paparana	inante de l'ordrenan	a l'esteriori serve	والمرواد والمحاوية و
ENTERYOUR POSTAL CODE		QUERY RES	ULTS		SZERBLAHARDELET Entres Exercise Esercise for Let			
About PoliutionWatch	Searc	h Parameters:			~			
How to use Pollution Watch	Paxis Prove	a Cadir: n7 ncu: Acruss Canada						
Who is Pallating?	Pollui Year:	tion Type: Total Report 2002	ed Releases and Tr	onsiers				
Pollution Rankings 🔗) Pleas	e note:						
Pollution Timatices	•	The units of measurements	i tor walla gradamilati basi	ne des ré dingen des constants	nni (Kg), 4623) anni (Kg), 4623)	dsig 12 maartaat oo		
Environmental Laws)	grams (g) TEO.	na titeralitaria la crista di traga danana i	n an the second s	alitari Ella, Verdelo, 4 Ella	(An a () de mini de la fai (a)		
Prens Rotten 🕈) :	Procing data is not oclu po to <u>Che n Paloinal</u> w	oed in tabl releases or Fallation Santanas	tanders dats. T	o ottan rent.	ing data, sites et		
Take Action	Rank	Facility	Сомрапу Нате	Total	National	Province		
Lesson Plans for Teachers),	Samia Antore Piper	mema ol	MILLING MILLING	18 18	0N		
Ressources Francaises	2	Cabol Concern Ltri	Cappt Canada Loi	<u> </u>	72	(†#4		
Vana 6	3	Samls Options	<u>Ripson Stermakn</u>	84 111 2	106	-011		
	× *	<u>Spenis Corectors)</u> Consideration (Plant	Ternetta Comunitados	1.506.054	176	<u></u> 241		
Search Pollubon Watch	7 ₅	Same Paul	Filmerinanistensist.	1.166.426	218	ান		
	6	Brenthi Senii Sin	Barrille.	2,33K,175] 48	úМ		
	Ť	Chinitian	Combacia Nazori. Ni	<u>1 790 709</u>	334	914		
	0	Cana 234	<u>22225 Chemicale</u> Concession	Länkall	341	্গ		
	ġ.	Gener Cherrice Plan	meniscist	1,996.235	326	Cta		
	10	<u> Samin Fractionalism Pras</u>	, EF. Causula Eusers Compleme	714 205	450	C14		
	a na sa	<u>í Al</u> le	Prous11211586	<u>~~@IUza>i</u>	74			alatan fina babadan katanan

Activity 2

Time required: 2-3 time units (45 minute periods)

Time trends and Facility-to-Facility Comparison

The purpose of this activity is to allow students to learn about releases and/or transfers of some specific chemicals, observe changes over time and compare to other similar facilities.

Goals of This Activity:

- 1. Identify 10 facilities in your province that release a specific pollutant;
- 2. Analyze records and determine which facilities have the greatest amount of pollutants released; and,
- 3. Analyze changes over time in releases to the media identified above in Activity 1.

Preparation Work for Teachers:

- Research local industrial facilities that release pollutants to the environment. You may use a larger area if the area where you live is not heavily industrialized.
- Look at the time trends on PollutionWatch and select those facilities that had the most dramatic changes in their releases.
- Research pollution prevention methods for industry (to be used in Step 6).

Step 1

Give students the name of a specific pollutant and tell them about its impact to the environment and human health. (This information could be gathered from the PollutionWatch web site.) (15 min)

Step 2

Ask students to use the PollutionWatch web site to identify which facilities release this pollutant in your province. (15 min)

Step 3

Ask students to use PollutionWatch to identify media into which the selected pollutant is released. (15 min)

Step 4

Ask students to select five facilities with the largest releases of the specific pollutant and make a table displaying the releases/transfers. (30 min)

Facility	1995	1996	1997	1998	1999	2000	2001	2002
1.								
2.								
3.								
4.								
5.								
Total								
Average								

Step 5

To visualize changes over time, ask students to make a graph for releases and describe any trends evident in the graph. (30 min)

Step 6

Identify the facility with the sharpest increase in releases. Compare it to the facility with the largest release in 2002. Ask students to think of reasons why releases from a facility might change from year to year. Discuss with students ways that a facility could decrease releases. (This information could be gathered from CIELAP's *Citizens' Guide to Pollution Prevention* or web sites on pollution prevention.) (30 min)

Conclusion

We hope you have found the *Teachers' Guide to the National Pollutant Release Inventory* interesting and trust you will find it useful. We would like to hear how you used the Guide and we welcome any advice you can provide. Your suggestions will assist us in the publication of future Guides for Teachers who wish to explore the importance of environmental protection on our health and on our society, as we all strive to live more sustainable lives.

About CIELAP

The Canadian Institute for Environmental Law and Policy (CIELAP) is a non-profit organization dedicated to providing leadership in the research and development of environmental law and policy that promotes the public interest and sustainability. CIELAP's vision is a world in which basic human rights include a safe and healthy environment, achieved through respect for, and preservation of, nature's integrity and diversity. Our work is focused on environmental issues related to water and air quality, pollution prevention, hazardous waste, food and biotechnology, and energy. To find out more about CIELAP or to access all our publications, visit our web site: www.cielap.org

Resources Available

CIELAP has numerous publications related to the topics discussed in this Teachers' Guide. To learn more about Hazardous Waste or Pollution Prevention, visit CIELAP's web site or contact us directly.

NPRI Education Tools:

- Canadian Pollutant Releases and Transfers NPRI data 2000 – Poster Map (senior)
- Canadian Pollutant Releases and Transfers NPRI data 2000 Poster Map (junior)
- Citizens' Guide to National Pollutant Release
 Inventory

Hazardous Waste:

- Ontario: Open for Toxics
- Fact Sheet on Hazardous Waste (available only in hard copy)

Pollution Prevention:

• Citizens' Guide to Pollution Prevention (second edition due out in March 2005)